



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF COOK COUNTY
Cook County Building, Board Room, 118 North Clark Street, Chicago, Illinois

New Items Agenda

Meeting of the Board of Commissioners

Wednesday, April 9, 2014, 11:00 AM

14-2444

Sponsored by: EARLEAN COLLINS and JOAN PATRICIA MURPHY, County Commissioners

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

ADULT ORAL HEALTH CARE

WHEREAS, Cook County is a home rule unit of local government pursuant to Article VII, Section 6 (a) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; and

WHEREAS, this country's strength and ability to prosper is grounded in the health and safety of its people. For many years now millions of Americans could not afford adequate healthcare. The Affordable Care Act affords us an opportunity to provide and improve health care services to every American; and

WHEREAS, while the passage of the Affordable Care Act has moved this country in a direction for all people to have health insurance, it would be remiss of us not to acknowledge the need for adjustments as a program of this magnitude is implemented; and

WHEREAS, the Affordable Care Act excludes adult oral health care services while it covers many essential health benefits. It has been acknowledged by oral health care agencies and professionals that oral health care is essential to insure overall quality of health; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Surgeon General refers to dental disease as a silent epidemic. In 2000 the U.S. Surgeon General issued a report on the Oral Health of American, in it the National Institute of Dental and Craniofacial Research showed the link between general health and oral health. The report went on to say that many systemic diseases and conditions have oral manifestations. These manifestations may be the initial sign of clinical disease and as such serve to inform clinicians and individuals of the need for further assessment. More importantly, the report notes that the oral cavity is a portal of entry as well as the site of disease for microbial infections that affect general health status; and

WHEREAS, it is also acknowledge by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services that the lack of access to dental care is extremely important because left untreated oral disease can lead not only to pain, infection and tooth loss, but also contribute to an increased risk for serious medical conditions such as diabetes, heart disease and poor birth outcomes; and

WHEREAS, according to the Center for Disease Control and Prevention there are threats to oral health across one's lifespan. Nearly one-third of all adults in the United States have untreated tooth decay. One in seven adults aged 35 to 44 years has gum disease, this increases to one in every four adults aged 65 years and older; and

WHEREAS, according to Oral Health America, the older adult population is the fastest growing segment of the United States and many are facing a dire situation when it comes to oral health.

Accordingly, by 2030 there will be 72+ million older adults in the U.S., most won't have access to dental care, impacting overall health; and

WHEREAS, a 2013 study, issued by Advance for Nurse Practitioners and Physicians Assistants, reported that 30% of older adults lose their teeth, 23% have gum disease, 50% have untreated cavities and that there are 30,000 oral and pharyngeal cancers diagnosed annually; and

WHEREAS, the American Dental Association (ADA) states that oral health is essential for a healthy America. The ADA further states that no law, regulation or mandate will improve the oral health of the public unless policymakers, patients and dentists work together with a shared understanding of the importance of oral health and its relationship to overall health; and

WHEREAS, the ADA states that prevention pays and that the key to improving and maintaining good oral health is by preventing oral disease.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the President and the Cook County Board of Commissioners calls upon the President of the United States, the House and Senate to consider adult oral health care coverage under the Affordable Care Act.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a suitable copy of the Resolution be tendered to the President of the United States of America, the House and the Senate.

14-2448

Sponsored by: TONI PRECKWINKLE, President, Cook County Board of Commissioners and BRIDGET GAINER, County Commissioner

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

JUVENILE TEMPORARY DETENTION CENTER ADVISORY BOARD

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Cook County Board of Commissioners, that Chapter 2 Administration, Article I. Boards, Commissions and Committees, Division 2. Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory oard, Sec. 2-511 through 2-521 of the Cook County Code are hereby amended as follows:

ARTICLE VI. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES

DIVISION 3. JUVENILE TEMPORARY DETENTION CENTER ADVISORY BOARD

Sec. 2-511. Short title.

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Ordinance Establishing the Cook County Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board."

Sec. 2-512. Purpose of the Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board.

The purpose of the Advisory Board is to establish an advocacy and resource group to provide public recommendations to the Executive Director of the Juvenile Temporary Detention Center (“JTDC”), the Chief Judge, the County Board and the President on matters relating to the policies and operations of the JTDC.

Sec. 2-513. Declaration.

- (a) The County Board hereby establishes the Cook County Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board ("Advisory Board"). The County Board hereby finds and declares that the Advisory Board shall provide, but not limited to, the following:
 - (1) Make public recommendations to the, Executive Director of the JTDC, the Chief Judge, the County Board and the President regarding administrative policies and procedures for operating the JTDC.
 - (2) Provide public recommendation to maximize the use of existing resources at the JTDC.
 - (3) Provide public recommendations regarding the educational, physical, social, and psychological needs of the population.
 - (4) Establish public performance measures to track and measure the achievement of the JTDC’s mission.
 - (5) Provide public recommendations as needed to ensure the general health, mental health, educational, physical, social and psychological needs of the population at the JTDC are being recognized and addressed.

Sec. 2-514. Definitions.

For purposes of this article, the following words or terms shall have the meaning or construction ascribed to them in this section:

Advisory Board means the eleven (11) member board charged with providing public recommendations to the Executive Director of the JTDC, the Chief Judge, the County Board and the President on all matters relating to the policies and operations of the JTDC.

Chairperson means the chairperson of the Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board.

County Board means the Board of Commissioners of Cook County, Illinois.

Member means a member of the Advisory Board.

Ordinance means the Ordinance Establishing the Cook County Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board Ordinance, as amended.

President means the President of the Board of Commissioners of Cook County, Illinois.

Sec. 2-515. Establishment of the Cook County Juvenile Temporary Detention Center Advisory Board ("Advisory Board").

- (a) The Advisory Board is hereby created and established. The Advisory Board shall consist of eleven (11) members called "Members." The purpose of the Advisory Board is to establish an advocacy and resource group to provide public recommendations to the Executive Director of the JTDC, the Chief Judge, the County Board and the President on matters relating to the policies and operations of the Juvenile Temporary Detention Center.

Sec. 2-516. Members of the JTDC Advisory Board.

- (a) *General.* The appointed Members shall receive no compensation for their service, but may be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses while serving on the JTDC Advisory Board. Pursuant to the relevant legal requirements regarding juvenile records, medical records, mental health records or any other law regulating sensitive and/or personal information, Members shall keep any and all such information confidential.
- (b) *Number of Members.* There shall be eleven (11) Members of the JTDC Advisory Board.
- (c) *Appointment of Members.* One of the eleven Members shall be an Ex-Officio Member; the ex-officio Member shall be a Cook County Board Commissioner, the ex-officio Member shall be a joint appointment of the President and Chief Judge. The ex-officio Member shall be a voting Member of the JTDC Advisory Board. The ex-officio Member shall serve as a liaison between the County Board and the JTDC Advisory Board. The ten (10) remaining Members may be appointed by the President and the Chief Judge as follows;
 - (1) Five Members are to be appointed by the President and five Members may be appointed by the Chief Judge, Members may include youth community advocates, youth development experts, educators, mental health specialists, physicians, and attorneys to ensure that the various needs of this population are recognized and served. One of the Members appointed by the President shall be a young adult.
 - (2) The Cook County Justice Advisory Council shall solicit and accept written nominations of interested and qualified persons to sit on the JTDC Advisory Board within 60 days of approval and adoption of this ordinance. Within 45 days thereafter, the Chair of the Cook County Justice Advisory Council shall submit all applicants to the President and the Chief Judge in writing for consideration. Nominated candidates shall at a minimum satisfy the qualifications listed in Section 2-517. The President shall then appoint five (5) individuals ~~four (4) individuals~~ from the list of nominees to serve on the JTDC Advisory Board, and the Chief Judge may appoint five (5) individuals ~~four (4) individuals~~ from the list of nominees to serve on the JTDC Advisory Board. For appointments to the JTDC Advisory that would occur post December 3, 2013, the President and Chief Judge

may accept nominations or solicit and accept written applications from interested and qualified persons to sit on the JTDC Advisory Board directly; however, said applicants or nominees shall at a minimum satisfy the qualifications listed in Section 2-517; Advisory Board Appointments occurring post December 3, 2013 shall be subject to confirmation by the County Board.

- (3) Should a nominee recommended for appointment by the President or Chief Judge withdraw prior to being confirmed, be rescinded by the appointing authority prior to confirmation or should the nominee recommended for appointment be rejected by the County Board, the President and/or the Chief Judge depending on the appointing authority may submit additional nominations to the County Board for consideration within 60 (sixty) days following withdrawal, rescission or rejection by the County Board.
- (d) Any unfilled initial Member positions as of December 3, 2013 that are subject to appointment by the President or Chief Judge (including the ex-officio Member) must be nominated for appointment to the County Board by the appropriate appointing authority by February 19, 2014. If by February 20, 2014 nominees for any unfilled initial Member terms have not been submitted to the County Board for consideration, the County Board shall appoint any remaining initial Members, including the ex-officio Member, for the JTDC Advisory Board as follows:
 - (1) The Chair of the Cook County Law Enforcement ~~Criminal Justice~~ Committee will immediately begin to solicit and accept written nominations of interested and qualified persons to sit on the Advisory Board.
 - (2) Within ~~60~~ 45 days thereafter, the Cook County Law Enforcement ~~Criminal Justice~~ Committee will review and approve nominees and submit them for consideration at the next immediately scheduled Cook County Board Meeting.
- (e) *Terms of Members.*
 - (1) *Ex-Officio Member.*
 - a. The President's and Chief Judge's Cook County Board Commissioner ex-officio Member shall serve as their County Board appointment for the length of the Commissioner's term. Upon an appointment or election change for the representative from the County Board, the President and Chief Judge may provide notice to the County Board and the JTDC Advisory Board of any such change in ex-officio member appointment.
 - (2) *The remaining Members.* The remaining ten (10) Members of the JTDC Advisory Board shall serve terms as follows
 - a. For the initial Members,

1. One (1) of the Members appointed by the President, other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve a term that expires on June 30, 2015 ~~June 30, 2013~~.
 2. Two (2) of the Members appointed by the Cook County Board or Chief Judge, other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve a term that expires on December 30, 2015 ~~December 30, 2014~~.
 3. Two (2) of the Members appointed by the President other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve a term that expires on June 30, 2016 ~~June 30, 2014~~.
 4. One (1) of the Members appointed by the Cook County Board or Chief Judge, other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve a term that expires on December 30, 2016 ~~December 30, 2015~~.
 5. Two (2) of the Members appointed by the President other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve terms that expire on June 30, 2017 ~~June 30, 2015~~.
 6. Two (2) of the Members appointed by the Cook County Board or Chief Judge, other than the ex-officio Member, shall serve terms that expire on December 30, 2017 ~~December 30, 2016~~.
- b. Thereafter, all Members other than the ex-officio member appointed shall serve a term of three (3) years.
1. Each appointed Member, whether Initial or subsequent, shall hold office until a successor is appointed.
 2. Any appointed Member who is appointed to fill a vacancy, other than a vacancy caused by the expiration of the predecessor's term, shall serve until the expiration of his or her predecessor's term.
- (f) *Vacancy.* A vacancy shall occur upon the:
- (1) Expiration of Member's term,
 - (2) Resignation,
 - (3) Death,
 - (4) Conviction of a felony, or
 - (5) Removal from the office of an appointed Member as set forth in paragraph (g) of this section.
- (g) *Removal of Members.* A JTDC Advisory Board Member may be removed for good cause by the President or Chief Judge. Good cause includes inefficiency, neglect of duty, malfeasance, or any cause which renders the Member unfit for the position or unable to perform the duties of the position. The President or Chief Judge shall provide written

notice to that Member, the Executive Director of the JTDC, and the County Board of the proposed removal of that Member from the Advisory Board; such notice shall state the specific grounds which constitute cause for removal. The Member, in receipt of such notice, may request to appear before the County Board and present reasons in support of his or her retention. Thereafter, the County Board shall vote upon whether there are sufficient grounds to remove that Member from office. The President or Chief Judge shall notify the subject Member of the final action of the County Board.

Sec. 2-517. Qualifications of Members.

- (a) Criteria to be considered in nominating or appointing individuals to serve as Members shall include:
 - (1) Background and skills needed on the JTDC Advisory Board;
 - (2) Resident of Cook County, Illinois;
 - (3) Availability and willingness to attend a minimum of four (4) JTDC Advisory Board meetings annually; and
 - (4) Willingness to acquire the knowledge and skills required to advise on complex juvenile detention center issues.

- (b) Ability and willingness to:
 - (1) Promptly relate community input to the JTDC Advisory Board;
 - (2) Learn sufficient details about JTDC management and operations in order to effectively evaluate proposed actions and reports; and
 - (3) Accept and fulfill reasonable assignments from the Chairperson of the JTDC Advisory Board.

Sec. 2-518. Chairperson/officers of the Advisory Board.

- (a) The Members shall select the initial Chairperson of the JTDC Advisory Board from among the initial Members. The Chairperson shall serve a one-year term and, thereafter, the JTDC Advisory Board shall annually elect a chairperson from among the Members.
 - (1) The Chairperson shall preside at meetings of the JTDC Advisory Board, and is entitled to vote on all matters before the JTDC Advisory Board.
 - (2) A Member may be elected to serve successive terms as Chairperson.

Sec. 2-519. Meetings of the JTDC Advisory Board.

- (a) The President shall call the first meeting of the JTDC Advisory Board, after consultation with the Chief Judge. Thereafter, the Members shall prescribe the times and places for their meetings and the manner in which regular and special meetings may be called.
- (b) Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairperson, however, no less than six (6) meetings shall be held annually.

- (c) A majority of the voting Members shall constitute a quorum. Recommendations of the JTDC Advisory Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting members of the JTDC Advisory Board present and voting at the meeting at which the action is taken.
- (d) To the extent feasible, the JTDC Advisory Board shall provide for and encourage participation by the public in the development and review of recommendations for JTDC. The JTDC Advisory Board may hold public hearings as it deems appropriate to the performance of any of its responsibilities.
- (e) The JTDC Advisory Board shall comply in all respects with the Open Meetings Act, as now or hereafter amended, and found at 5 ILCS 120/1, et seq.
- (f) The JTDC Advisory Board shall be subject to the Local Records Act, as now or hereafter amended, and found at 50 ILCS 205/1, et seq.

.Sec. 2-520. Annual report of the JTDC Advisory Board.

- (a) The JTDC Advisory Board shall submit to the Executive Director of the JTDC, the Chief Judge, the Board of Commissioners and the President an annual report prior to the end of the Cook County fiscal year.
- (b) Included in the report shall be any recommendations for additional legislation or other action which may be necessary to carry out the mission, purpose and intent of the JTDC.

Effective date: This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon approval and adoption.